FIRST AMENDMED BY-LAWS OF FOOD FOR THOUGHT OUTREACH, INC.

ARTICLE I – OFFICES

The office of the Corporation shall be located at 69 Redfish Circle, Santa Rosa Beach, Florida, 32459, Florida which is in Walton County. The Corporation may also maintain offices at such other places within or without the United States as the Board of Directors may, from time to time, determine.

ARTICLE II – MEMBERS

<u>Section 1 - Eligible Members</u>: Initially the Corporation will only have one (1) member, which shall be the Incorporator, who is a Class "A" member. The Corporation will not have any other members but may elect to offer membership opportunities in the future based on criteria established by the Board of Directors. For example, the Board of Directors may offer membership to those persons that are willing to promote the healthy development of school age children with faithful acts of kindness and charity within the meaning of Section 501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code all as determined in the judgment of the Board of Directors who may accept or deny any person for membership in the Corporation.

<u>Section 2 – Membership Classes</u>: There shall be two classes of membership. – Class "A" members and Class "B" members. Class "A" members shall be entitled to vote on all matters properly before the membership. Class "B" members shall have no voting rights but may attend membership and/or board meetings. No Class "B" membership may be offered without the approval of the Incorporator.

ARTICLE III - MEETING OF MEMBERS

<u>Section 1 - Annual Meetings</u>: The annual meeting of the members of the Corporation shall be held within five months after the close of the fiscal year of the Corporation, for the purpose of electing directors, and transacting such other business as may properly come before the meeting.

<u>Section 2 - Special Meetings</u>: Special meetings of the members may be called at any time by a majority of the Board of Directors or by the President, and shall be called by the President or the Secretary at the written request of at least twenty percent (20%) of the members then outstanding and entitled to vote thereat, or as otherwise required under the provisions of the Not For Profit Corporation Act.

<u>Section 3 - Place of Meetings</u>: All meetings of members shall be held at the principal office of the Corporation, or at such other places as shall be designated in the notices or waivers of notice of such meetings.

Section 4 - Notice of Meetings:

- (a) Except as otherwise provided by Statute, written notice of each meeting of members, whether annual or special, stating the time when and place where it is to be held, shall be served either personally or by e-mail, not less than five (5) or more than fifty (50) days before the meeting, upon each member of record entitled to vote at such meeting, and to any other member to whom the giving of notice may be required by law. Notice of a special meeting shall also state the purpose or purposes for which the meeting is called, and shall indicate that it is being issued by, or at the direction of, the person or persons calling the meeting. If mailed, such notice shall be directed to each such member at his address, as it appears on the records of the members of the Corporation, unless he shall have previously filed with the Secretary of the Corporation a written request that notices intended for him be mailed to some other address, in which case, it shall be mailed to the address designated in such request.
- (b) Notice of any meeting need not be given to any person who may become a member of record after the mailing of such notice and prior to the meeting, or to any member who attends such meeting, in person or by proxy, or to any member who, in person or by proxy, submits a signed waiver of notice either before or after such meeting. Notice of any adjourned meeting of members need not be given, unless otherwise required by statute.

Section 5 - Quorum:

- (a) Except as otherwise provided herein, or by statute, or in the Articles of Incorporation (such articles and any amendments thereof being hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Certificate of Incorporation"), at all meetings of members of the Corporation, the presence at the commencement of such meetings in person or by proxy of members representing at least ten percent (10%) of the members entitled to vote, shall be necessary and sufficient to constitute a quorum for the transaction of any business. The withdrawal of any member after the commencement of a meeting shall have no effect on the existence of a quorum, after a quorum has been established at such meeting.
- (b) Despite the absence of a quorum at any annual or special meeting of members, the members, by a majority of the votes cast may adjourn the meeting. At any such adjourned meeting at which a quorum is present, any business may be transacted at the meeting as originally called if a quorum had been present.

Section 6 - Voting:

- (a) Except as otherwise provided by statute or by the Certificate of Incorporation, any corporate action, other than the election of directors, to be taken by vote of the members, shall be authorized by a majority of votes cast at a meeting of members.
- (b) Except as otherwise provided by statute or by the Certificate of Incorporation, at each meeting of members, each member of the Corporation entitled to vote thereat, shall be entitled to one vote.

- (c) Each member entitled to vote or to express consent or dissent without a meeting, may do so by proxy; provided, however, that the instrument authorizing such proxy to act shall have been executed in writing by the member himself.
- (d) Any resolution in writing, signed by all of the members entitled to vote thereon, shall be and constitute action by such members to the effect therein expressed, with the same force and effect as if the same had been duly passed by unanimous vote at a duly called meeting of members and such resolution so signed shall be inserted in the Minute Book of the Corporation under its proper date.

ARTICLE IV - BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 1 - Number, Election and Term of Office:

- (a) The number of the directors of the Corporation shall be no less than three (3) but no more than seven (7).
- (b) Except as may otherwise be provided herein or in the Certificate of Incorporation, the members of the Board of Directors of the Corporation, who need not be members, shall be elected by a majority of the votes cast at a meeting of members, entitled to vote in the election.
- (c) Each director shall hold office for a minimum term of two (2) years, with such terms being staggered by the Incorporator, until the annual meeting of the members next succeeding his election, and until his successor is elected and qualified, or until his prior death, resignation or removal.
- <u>Section 2 Duties and Powers</u>: The Board of Directors shall be responsible for the control and management of the affairs, property and interests of the Corporation, and may exercise all powers of the Corporation, except as are in the Certificate of Incorporation or by statute expressly conferred upon or reserved to the members.

Section 3 - Annual and Regular Meetings; Notice:

- (a) A regular annual meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held immediately following the annual meeting of the members, at the place of such annual meeting of members.
- (b) The Board of Directors, from time to time, may provide by resolution for the holding of regular meetings of the Board of Directors, and may fix the time and place thereof.
- (c) Notice of any regular meeting of the Board of Directors shall not be required to be given and, if given, need not specify the purpose of the meeting; provided, however, that in case the Board of Directors shall fix or change the time or place of any regular meeting, notice of such action shall be given to each director who shall not have been present at the meeting at which such action was taken within the time limited, and in the manner set forth in paragraph (b) Section 4 of this Article III, with respect to special meetings, unless such notice shall be waived in the manner set forth in paragraph (c) of such Section 4.

<u>Section 4 - Special Meetings; Notice:</u>

- (a) Special meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held whenever called by the President or by one of the directors, at such time and place as may be specified in the respective notices or waivers of notice thereof.
- (b) Except as otherwise required by statute, notice of special meetings shall be e-mailed directly to each director at least two (2) days before the day on which the meeting is to be held, or shall be sent to him at such place by telegram, radio or cable, or shall be delivered to him personally or given to him orally, not later than the day before the day on which the meeting is to be held. A notice, or waiver of notice, except as required by Section 8 of this Article IV, need not specify the purpose of the meeting.
- (c) Notice of any special meeting shall not be required to be given to any director who shall attend such meeting without protesting prior thereto or at its commencement, the lack of notice to him, or who submits a signed waiver of notice, whether before or after the meeting. Notice of any adjourned meeting shall not be required to be given.
- <u>Section 5 Chairman</u>: At all meetings of the Board of Directors, the President, if present, shall preside. If there shall be no President, or she/he shall be absent, then the Vice President shall preside, and in his/her absence, an Officer chosen by the directors shall preside.

Section 6 - Quorum and Adjournments:

- (a) At all meetings of the Board of Directors, the presence of at least fifty percent (50%) of the entire Board shall be necessary and sufficient to constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, except as otherwise provided by law, by the Certificate of Incorporation, or by these By-Laws.
- (b) A majority of the directors present at the time and place of any regular or special meeting, although less than a quorum, may adjourn the same from time to time without notice, until a quorum shall be present.

Section 7 - Manner of Acting:

- (a) At all meetings of the Board of Directors, each director present shall have one vote.
- (b) Except as otherwise provided by statute, by the Certificate of Incorporation, or by these By-Laws, the action of a majority of the directors present at any meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Board of Directors. Any action authorized, in writing, by all of the directors entitled to vote thereon and filed with the minutes of the corporation shall be the act of the Board of Directors with the same force and effect as if the same had been passed by unanimous vote at a duly called meeting of the Board.
- <u>Section 8 Vacancies</u>: Any vacancy in the Board of Directors occurring by reason of an increase in the number of directors, or by reason of the death, resignation, disqualification, removal (unless a vacancy created by the removal of a director by the members shall be filled by the members at

the meeting at which the removal was effected) or inability to act of any director, or otherwise, may be filled for the unexpired portion of the term by a majority vote of the remaining directors, though less than a quorum, at any regular meeting or special meeting of the Board of Directors called for that purpose.

<u>Section 9 - Resignation</u>: Any director may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Board of Directors, the President or the Secretary of the Corporation. Unless otherwise specified in such written notice, such resignation shall take effect upon receipt thereof by the Board of Directors or such officer, and the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.

<u>Section 10 - Removal</u>: Any director may be removed with or without cause at any time by the affirmative vote of members representing at least a majority of the Class "A" members of the Corporation at a special meeting of the members called for that purpose, and may be removed for cause by action of the Board.

<u>Section 11 - Salary</u>: A director may be paid a reasonable compensation, which shall be established and approved by the Board of Directors.

Section 12 - Contracts:

- (a) No contract or other transaction between this Corporation and any other Corporation shall be impaired, affected or invalidated, nor shall any director be liable in any way by reason of the fact that any one or more of the directors of this Corporation is or are interested in, or is a director or officer, or are directors or officers of such other Corporation, provided that such facts are disclosed or made known to the Board of Directors.
- (b) Any director, personally and individually, may be a party to or may be interested in any contract or transaction of this Corporation, and no director shall be liable in any way by reason of such interest, provided that the fact of such interest be disclosed or made known to the Board of Directors, and provided that the Board of Directors shall authorize, approve or ratify such contract or transaction by the vote (not counting the vote of any such director) of a majority of a quorum, notwithstanding the presence of any such director at the meeting at which such action is taken. Such director or directors may be counted in determining the presence of a quorum at such meeting. This Section shall not be construed to impair or invalidate or in any way affect any contract or other transaction which would otherwise be valid under the law (common, statutory or otherwise) applicable thereto.

<u>Section 13 - Committees</u>: The Board of Directors, by resolution adopted by a majority of the entire Board, may from time to time designate from among its members an executive committee and such other committees, and alternate members thereof, as they may deem desirable, each consisting of at least two (2) members, with such powers and authority (to the extent permitted by law) as may be provided in such resolution. Each such committee shall serve at the pleasure of the Board.

Section 1 - Number, Qualification, Election and Term of Office:

- (a) The officers of the Corporation shall consist of a President, a Secretary, a Treasurer, and such other officers, and one or more Vice Presidents, as the Board of Directors may from time to time deem advisable. Any officer may be, but is not required to be, a director of the Corporation. Any two or more offices may be held by the same person, except that the offices of President and Secretary shall not be held by the same person.
- (b) The officers of the Corporation shall be elected by the Board of Directors at the regular annual meeting of the Board following the annual meeting of members.
- (c) Each officer shall hold office until the annual meeting of the Board of Directors next succeeding his election, and until his successor shall have been elected and qualified, or until his death, resignation or removal.
- <u>Section 2 Resignation</u>: Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice of such resignation to the Board of Directors, or to the President or the Secretary of the Corporation. Unless otherwise specified in such written notice, such resignation shall take effect upon receipt thereof by the Board of Directors or by such officer, and the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.
- <u>Section 3 Removal</u>: Any officer may be removed, either with or without cause, and a successor elected by a majority vote of the Board of Directors at any time.
- <u>Section 4 Vacancies</u>: A vacancy in any office by reason of death, resignation, inability to act, disqualification, or any other cause, may at any time be filled for the unexpired portion of the term by a majority vote of the Board of Directors.
- <u>Section 5 Duties of Officers</u>: Officers of the Corporation shall, unless otherwise provided by the Board of Directors, each have such powers and duties as generally pertain to their respective offices as well as such powers and duties as may be set forth in these By-Laws, or may from time to time be specifically conferred or imposed by the Board of Directors. The President shall be the chief executive officer of the Corporation.
- <u>Section 6 Sureties and Bonds</u>: In case the Board of Directors shall so require, any officer, employee or agent of the Corporation shall execute to the Corporation a bond in such sum, and with such surety or sureties as the Board of Directors may direct, conditioned upon the faithful performance of his duties to the Corporation, including responsibility for negligence and for the accounting for all property, funds or securities of the Corporation which may come into his hands.

ARTICLE VI - FISCAL YEAR

The fiscal year of the Corporation shall the calendar year.

The corporate seal, if any, shall be in such form as shall be approved from time to time by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE VIII – AMENDMENTS

<u>Section 1 - By Members</u>: All By-Laws of the Corporation shall be subject to alteration or repeal, and new By-Laws may be made, by the affirmative vote of members entitled to vote in the election of directors at any annual or special meeting of members, provided that the notice or waiver of notice of such meeting shall have summarized or set forth in full therein, the proposed amendment.

<u>Section 2 - By Directors</u>: The Board of Directors shall have power to make, adopt, alter, amend and repeal, from time to time, By-Laws of the Corporation; provided, however, that the members entitled to vote with respect thereto as in this Article IX above-provided may alter, amend or repeal By-Laws made by the Board of Directors, except that the Board of Directors shall have no power to change the quorum for meetings of members or of the Board of Directors, or to change any provisions of the By-Laws with respect to the removal of directors or the filling of vacancies in the Board resulting from the removal by the members. If any By-Law regulating an impending election of directors is adopted, amended or repealed by the Board of Directors, there shall be set forth in the notice of the next meeting of members for the election of directors, the By-Law so adopted, amended or repealed, together with a concise statement of the changes made.

ARTICLE IX – INDEMNITY

- (a) Any person made a party to any action, suit or proceeding, by reason of the fact that he, his testator or intestate representative is or was a director, officer or employee of the Corporation, or of any Corporation in which he served as such at the request of the Corporation, shall be indemnified by the Corporation against the reasonable expenses, including attorney's fees, actually and necessarily incurred by him in connection with the defense of such action, suit or proceedings, or in connection with any appeal therein, except in relation to matters as to which it shall be adjudged in such action, suit or proceeding, or in connection with any appeal therein that such officer, director or employee is liable for negligence or misconduct in the performance of his duties.
- (b) The foregoing right of indemnification shall not be deemed exclusive of any other rights to which any officer or director or employee may be entitled apart from the provisions of this section.
- (c) The amount of indemnity to which any officer or any director may be entitled shall be fixed by the Board of Directors, except that in any case where there is no disinterested majority of the Board available, the amount shall be fixed by arbitration pursuant to the then existing rules of the American Arbitration Association.

ARTICLE X - CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY

Purpose

The purpose of the conflict of interest policy is to protect this tax-exempt organization's (Organization) interest when it is contemplating entering into a transaction or arrangement that might benefit the private interest of an office or director of the Organization or might result in a possible excess benefit transaction. This policy is intended to supplement but not replace any applicable state and federal laws governing conflict of interest applicable to nonprofit and charitable organizations.

Definitions

1. Interested Person

Any director, principal officer, or member of a committee with governing board delegated powers, who has a direct or indirect financial interest, as defined below, is an interested person.

2. Financial Interest

A person has a financial interest if that person has, directly or indirectly, through business, investment, or family:

- a. An ownership or investment interest in any entity with which the Organization has a transaction or arrangement,
- b. A compensation arrangement with the Organization or with any entity or individual with which the Organization has a transaction or arrangement, or
- c. A potential ownership or investment interested in, or compensation arrangement with, any entity or individual with which the Organization is negotiating a transaction or arrangement.

Compensation includes direct and indirect remuneration as well as gifts or favors that are not insubstantial.

A financial interest is not necessarily a conflict of interest. Under Article III, Section 2, a person who has a financial interest may have a conflict of interest only if the appropriate governing board or committee decides that a conflict of interest exists.

Procedures

1. Duty to Disclose

In connection with any actual or possible conflict of interest, an interested person must disclose the existence of the financial interest and be given the opportunity to disclose all material facts to the directors and members of committees with governing board delegated powers considering the proposed transaction or arrangement.

2. Determining Whether a Conflict of Interest Exists

After disclosure of the financial interest and all material facts, and after any discussion with the interested person, he/she shall leave the governing board or committee meeting while the determination of a conflict of interest is discussed and voted upon. The remaining board or committee members shall decide if a conflict of interest exists.

3. Procedures for Addressing the Conflict of Interest

- a. An interested person may make a presentation at the governing board or committee meeting, but after the presentation, he/she shall leave the meeting during the discussion of, and the vote on, the transaction or arrangement involving the possible conflict of interest.
- b. The chairperson of the governing board or committee shall, if appropriate, appoint a disinterested person or committee to investigate alternatives to the proposed transaction or arrangement.
- c. After exercising due diligence, the governing board or committee shall determine whether the Organization can obtain with reasonable efforts a more advantageous transaction or arrangement from a person or entity that would not give rise to a conflict of interest.
- d. If a more advantageous transaction or arrangement is not reasonably possible under circumstances not producing a conflict of interest, the governing board or committee shall determine by a majority vote of the disinterested directors whether the transaction or arrangement is in the Organization's best interest, for its own benefit, and whether it is fair and reasonable. In conformity with the above determination it shall make its decision as to whether to enter into the transaction or arrangement.

4. Violations of the Conflicts of Interest Policy

- a. If the governing board or committee has reasonable cause to believe a member has failed to disclose actual or possible conflicts of interest, it shall inform the member of the basis for such belief and afford the member an opportunity to explain the alleged failure to disclose.
- b. If, after hearing the member's response and after making further investigation as warranted by the circumstances, the governing board or committee determines the member has failed to disclose an actual or possible conflict of interest, it shall take appropriate disciplinary and corrective action.

Records of Proceedings

The minutes of the governing board and all committees with board delegated powers shall contain:

- a. The names of the persons who disclosed or otherwise were found to have a financial interest in connection with an actual or possible conflict of interest, the nature of the financial interest, any action taken to determine whether a conflict of interest was present, and the governing board's or committee's decision as to whether a conflict of interest in fact existed.
- b. The names of the persons who were present for discussions and votes relating to the transaction or arrangement, the content of the discussion, including any alternatives to the proposed transaction or arrangement, and a record of any votes taken in connection with the proceedings.

Compensation

- a. A voting member of the governing board who receives compensation, directly or indirectly, from the Organization for services is precluded from voting on matters pertaining to that member's compensation.
- b. A voting member of any committee whose jurisdiction includes compensation matters and who receives compensation, directly or indirectly, form the Organization for services is precluded from voting on matters pertaining to that member's compensation.
- c. No voting member of the governing board or any committee whose jurisdiction includes compensation matters and who receives compensation, directly or indirectly, from the Organization, either individually or collectively, is prohibited from providing information to any committee regarding compensation.

Annual Statements

Each director, principal officer and member of a committee with governing board delegated powers shall annually sign a statement which affirms such person:

- a. Has received a copy of the conflicts of interest policy,
- b. Has read and understands the policy,
- c. Has agreed to comply with the policy, and
- d. Understands the Organization is charitable and in order to maintain its federal tax exemption it must engage primarily in activities which accomplish one or more of its tax-exempt purposes.

Periodic Reviews

To ensure the Organization operates in a manner consistent with charitable purposes and does not engage in activities that could jeopardize its tax-exempt status, periodic reviews shall be conducted. The periodic reviews shall, at a minimum, include the following subjects:

- a. Whether compensation arrangements and benefits are reasonable, based on competent survey information and the result of arm's length bargaining.
- b. Whether partnerships, joint ventures, and arrangements with management organizations conform to the Organization's written policies, are properly recorded, reflect reasonable investment or payments for goods and services, further charitable purposes and do not result in inurement, impermissible private benefit or in an excess benefit transaction.

Use of Outside Experts

When conducting the periodic reviews, the Organization may, but need not, use outside advisors
If outside experts are used, their use shall not relieve the governing board of its responsibility fo
ensuring periodic reviews are conducted.

The	undersigned	certifies, 2013.	that thes	e First	Amended	By-Law	were a	dopted	on the	 day of
						iffanie M	I. Shelt	on		